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Village partners dance in front of Ndereppe Epicentre, Senegal 
(underwritten by the Ward Group of Australian investors) 
Photo Credit: Johannes Odé
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Contents Letter from the Chair

In 2014, the firm commitment 
and dynamic leadership shown 
by our investor community in 
Australia once again unleashed 
the creativity and resilience of 
our village partners globally to 
get around obstacles standing 
in their way of ending hunger.

Australian investment meant that 
in 2014 for example: 56,143 village 
partners could access healthcare 
at our health clinics in Africa; 5,350 
toilets could be installed in 1,500 
Panchayats (village council areas) 
in India; 13,537 women and men 
could be mobilised to action 
through our Vision, Commitment, 
Action workshops in Bangladesh; 
13,323 village partners in Africa 
could take out small loans to 
increase their livelihoods; and 
more. I am proud to be your 
partner in making this possible for 
the 19 million people reached by 
The Hunger Project in South Asia, 
Africa and Latin America. 

Something that I think is 
particularly special about our work 
is the global connectedness that is 

at the forefront of what we do. As 
you, our investors, grow personally, 
so too do our partners: as we reach 
new heights in our fundraising 
like we did in 2014, our partners 
experience an ever-increasing 
positive impact in their lives. 

An exciting trend that we’ve seen 
building over the past year is the 
strategic foresight of our investors 
intent on shaping the future. The 
number of our investors pledging 
their support into the next 3-6 
years has increased significantly, 
which gives us the flexibility and 
confidence to better plan our work 
in rural villages around the world.

Our growth in fundraising also
 has a powerful effect on our 
investors personally. Our investors 
tell us that when they give to The 
Hunger Project, the act of investing 
brings forth their leadership too. 
We’re proud to say that we’re 
growing our investor community 
so that even more Australians 
can have the opportunity to 
experience this transformative 
leadership in their lives. 

At a global level, we welcomed 
Åsa Skogström Feldt as the new 
CEO and President of The Hunger 
Project worldwide. Åsa is the 
former head of The Hunger Project 
in Sweden, former national Board 
member in Sweden and a long-time 
investor. This marks a new era for 
The Hunger Project, and we are 
excited to work together with Åsa 
to end hunger by 2030. 

I am pleased to share this Annual 
Report with you. In it, you will 
see how our partnership can be 
a catalyst for our village partners 
to take action to turn their vision 
for a better future into reality. Like 
us, they seek a healthy and safe 
life. And with us, they know that’s 
possible. Thank you for being our 
partner in this important mission.

Diane Grady AM
Chair, The Hunger Project 
Australia National Board

We believe that hunger can end, and that ours is the generation that can 
end it once and for all.

We believe people who live in hunger are not the problem - they are the 
solution. We don’t see a billion mouths to feed, we see a billion human 
beings who are enterprising and resilient.

The work, therefore, is to unlock their capacity, creativity and leadership so 
they can end their own hunger. That’s what we do.

Together we can be extraordinary. We can end world hunger. 

If you feel the same way, read on.
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Letter from our CEO

In 2014, our village partners 
made changes in their lives
to feed their families every 
night; to send their children 
to school (and keep them 
enrolled); to build new, 
profitable businesses; and to 
be engaged, forward-thinking, 
creative members of their 
communities. Sounds familiar, 
don’t you think? 

I see over and over again how 
similar the visions and goals 
we have for ourselves and our 
families are to those of our village 
partners. We’re all part of a global 
community with a common future, 
which is why at The Hunger Project 
we believe that we each need to be 
part of shaping it.

The dedication of our investor 
community continues to embolden 
us in interrupting the thinking that 
hunger is inevitable. In partnership 
with you, in 2014 we achieved 
another year of revenue growth, 
specifically a 4% increase from 
2013 (fundraising income of $4.15M 
excluding services in kind, and total 
revenue of $4.38M – more than 

ever before). As a result, our village 
partners were able to rethink what’s 
possible and make the previously 
“impossible” (not really in our 
vocabulary!) a new reality instead. 

I visited Malawi and India 
during the year and met many 
hardworking women and men 
striving for a better future and a 
different reality. One of them was 
Marita from Malawi. 

That’s the kind of transformative 
change that your investment has 
made possible. 
In an especially encouraging 
display of commitment and 
action, as of the end of 2014 a 
number of our investors have 
pledged contributions to The 
Hunger Project right through 
to 2021 – to the value of $10.1M. 
This is absolute testament to the 
incredible understanding and 
appreciation of these investors for 
the long-term nature of our work 
– like us, they know that only with 
intensive, multi-year programmes 
is it possible to effect long-lasting, 
sustainable change.

We were lucky to host 3 special 
visitors in Australia in 2014, all of 
whom made compelling cases for 
long-term engagement resulting in 
real, transformative change. One 
was 24 year old Elected Woman 
Leader Navali from India who 
told her story to more than 1,000 
people at 15 events across 5 cities 
on her visit to Australia. Trained 
by The Hunger Project, she was 
empowered to get 4 schools built in 
her village, streetlights installed 

Photo Credit: Millie Allbon

Just 3 years ago, poverty 
and child mortality in 
her area were severe, 
and there was little 
education. Now, after 
being trained by The 
Hunger Project, she is 
the chairperson of the 
Rural Bank at our Majete 
1 Epicentre – and she 
has 5 children, 3 orphans 
and 4 grandchildren to 
look after! She is a great 
reminder that we are not 
our circumstances or our 
conditioning - we are 
capable of so much more.

for better safety, and a bridge built 
to replace a road that had been 
washed away. 

And now that she has unleashed 
her leadership, who knows what 
else she will make happen for 
her community? We’re excited to 
see. Navali was accompanied by 
Ruchi Yadav, Senior Programme 
Officer of THP-India. Ruchi also 
made a persuasive case for the 
power of the individual in shaping 
their community’s culture over 
time to create an environment 
where everyone has the chance 
to unleash their leadership. Her 
insights into expansive leadership 
– sharing your knowledge and 
vision, regardless of your fear, to 
strengthen those around you – 
speak to the essence of The Hunger 
Project’s work. The third visitor 
was The Hunger Project Mexico 
Country Director Lorena Vazquez 
Ordaz who has headed up THP-
Mexico for 13 years. She sees 
firsthand how shifting mindsets 
from despondency to self-reliance 
takes time – but that the payoff is 
extraordinary. Her insights into the 
‘iceberg’ of poverty where out of 
sight below the water are the root 
causes of poverty: a person’s mental 
structure. The mental structure that 
keeps hunger in place is exactly 
what our programmes target to 
create a powerful transformation 
for our village partners.

This shifting of the mindset is 
not only happening overseas, it’s 
happening in Australia too. 

That includes the 162 Global 
Investors we had in 2014, and 
the 189 people who attended our 
23 Rethinking What’s Possible 
workshops. And also the 58 others 
who had the chance to immerse 
themselves directly in our work in 
India, Malawi and Uganda and got 
a different perspective on shifting 
mindsets, including women from 
the Business Chicks community 
as well as senior leadership from 
Commonwealth Bank. We’re 
opening up this possibility with 
a whole new group of people 
too – for Christmas 2014, Mecca 
Cosmetica created a limited 
edition product (which sold out) 
with proceeds coming to us. Their 
customers have just had the first 
taster of what The Hunger Project’s 
about, and we can’t wait to see 
what happens next.

In 2015 we have big work to do, 
and we’re glad you’re there at 
our side as we do it. We love 
hearing about what drives you, 
with all your competing priorities, 
to invest – financially but also 
personally and emotionally – 
in The Hunger Project. And we 
are gladdened when we hear your 
responses of ‘with what I know 
about hunger and poverty, how 
can I not?’, ‘it’s how I address 
inequality in the world’ and ‘I 
have a deep sense of purpose for 
my life that was completely 
missing before’. Because that’s 
how we feel too. 

Together, our power, our love 
and our partnership is bringing 
about the end of hunger. Thank 
you for being at our side to 
make this possible.

Cathy Burke, 
CEO of The Hunger Project 
Australia

With our investor 
community growing and 
growing, it means that 
even more Australians 
are accessing what 
becomes possible when 
you shift your mindset. 
This is a truly heartening 
thought: that we can be 
the catalysts for this kind 
of change in the people 
we interact with every 
day in our work.

“With my own two 
hands.”

- Mantra of our village 
partners in Malawi

“The Hunger Project 
makes you unstoppable.”

- Shanti, Woman Leader 
trained by The Hunger 
Project in Bangladesh

 “They may not listen to 
me today but if I keep 

trying they will listen to 
me tomorrow.”

- Shantilla, Elected Woman 
Representative trained by 

The Hunger Project in India
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189
Rethinking What’s 
Possible workshop 

participants

135
Immersion 
Programme 

Trippers since 
2012

VillAge
PArTners

globAlly

320,000
people reached*

through 9 Epicentres 
& general funding

920,000
people reached*

in 185 Union 
Parishads

bangladesh

2.86 million
people reached*  
in 3,000 Gram  

Panchayats

india

21 million
people positively impacted
in 12 countries in Africa,  
South Asia and Latin America

Elected Women 
Representative 

sushila installed 
1200 toilets for every 
single home in her 
community. She 
made this her priority 
due to the real risk 
of rape for women 
needing 
to relieve 
themselves.

rejeya was 
trained in sewing 

and tailoring and so 
she started her own 
business and now 
makes enough money 
so her family can eat 
a full meal every night. 
Since then she has 
trained 8 other 
women so 
they can do 
the same too. 

Wanak took out a 
small loan to buy 

a motorbike which he 
uses as a taxi service 
to earn an income 
and feed his family.  
He also became  
the manager of the 
Food Bank so that  
his neighbours can 
have access 
to food all 
year round.

162 
Global Investor

Group members

AusTrAliAn
CommuniTy

Africa

Together, we are 
transforming lives 
The number of people living  
in hunger has declined by

1 billion +

795 
million

216 million

4,291 Investors 
contributed $4.15m in 2014

since 1990

*Reach refers to the total population in the communities in which we worked in 2014. 

The Hunger Project directly trains and mobilises a core group in each community to 

take action locally, which has a ripple effect that benefits the wider population.
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Africa

What our partners achieved thanks to Australian investment in 2014:

Amina has taken out several small loans from The 
Hunger Project to improve her situation. With her 
most recent loan of 1500 birr, she was able to send 
her daughter away to find a good job. With the 
money Amina has made through her previous loans 
and the success of her daughter, Amina has been 
able to redo her house. 

Amina, Ethiopia

Lovinsa was one of the first people in her village 
to participate in The Hunger Project’s programmes. 
Her attitude is that if she wants to learn something, 
she goes in search of a teacher. Now, she has 
learned so much from The Hunger Project that 
her neighbours call her a teacher – and ask her 
for advice.

Lovinsa, Uganda

When Elizabeth started her shop, she only had a 
very low range of stock and little income. She then 
learned business skills from The Hunger Project 
and now earns enough to be able to pay for two of 
her six kids to go to school and university. She is a 
widow and likes to say that, “The Hunger Project is 
my husband.”

Elizabeth, Malawi

At Chokwe Epicentre in Mozambique (underwritten by a 
group of Australian investors), 129 village partners were 
trained in how to best grow and harvest sweet potato on the 
communal farmland. As a result, they produced 2,000kgs of 
sweet potato. A portion of the surplus was sold at market 
for a profit, with the profits deposited into the Epicentre 
accounts. This kind of income generating activity for the 
Epicentre is key to their long-term financial sustainability.

Growing 2,000kgs of sweet potato

At the Kiruhura Epicentre in Uganda (underwritten by 
Australian investors the Whitbread Foundation and the 
Cranlana Group), 86 men and women graduated from our 
Functional Adult Literacy classes. For some of these village 
partners, it marked the culmination of 7 years of learning. 
Not only did the adult students learn to read and write, 
they also formed a drama group to encourage fellow village 
partners through storytelling and theatre to sign up to 
classes too. 

Learning to read & write at 50

27,657 
women and men 
learned to shift 
their mindset 

from ‘I can’t’ to 
‘I can’ to ‘We can’

56,143 
women, men and 
children accessed 
good healthcare 

close to their 
homes

13,323
women and men 

took out US $706,000 
worth of microfinance 

loans to start or 
expand their small 

businesses

31,851
children monitored 

for signs of 
malnutrition and 

stunting

+We can!I can!
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India

Shantilla
“They may not listen to me today but if I keep 
trying they will listen to me tomorrow.” Shantilla’s 
courageous vision to stop sham marriages and 
prevent young girls being sold into sex slavery 
led her to create a register of marriages in her 
panchayat so parents could track their daughters.

Renuka
Renuka stood up to corrupt middlemen in her 
village who exploited people’s trust with promises 
of work in distant cities that never materialised. She 
has brought harmony to her village with her vision 
to create a place where violence against women 
has stopped, and everyone has access to health, 
education and good governance.

Sabitri
Sabitri is the president of her village, and became 
a local role model by creating a vision - and taking 
action - for the benefit of the whole community. 
She’s stopping child trafficking, and is campaigning 
against violence. She has already been successful in 
getting toilets put into her village and buying 4 acres 
of land to cultivate food to feed the entire village.

What our partners achieved thanks to Australian investment in 2014:

1,051
women were trained at Women’s 

Leadership Workshops to become 
Elected  Women Representatives 

(EWRs), building up the 

10,400-strong army of EWRs 
across India bringing water and 

electricity to their villages

5,350
toilets installed across 

1,500 panchyats 
(village council areas) so 
that people have access 
to proper sanitation in a 

safe place

20,609 
people

were connected to 
government social 
security schemes

by Elected Women 
Representatives in Tamil Nadu State

were enrolled in schools

2,321 girls

EWRs in Rajasthan and Karnataka were invited to give 
input on amendments to the Panchayati Raj Acts in their 
respective state, including demanding for the removal 
of Two-Child Norm in Rajasthan. This two-child policy, 
modelled on China’s one-child policy, is discriminatory and 
disproportionately affects women and the marginalised 
classes. The inclusion of EWR perspectives into the Indian 
Congress Party’s manifesto is testament to the skilled 
advocacy efforts by EWRs throughout India.

Successful advocacy to end 
harmful policy

3,200 Elected Women Representatives (EWRs) spearheaded 
a coordinated Violence Against Women campaign across 
3 states to stop gender-based violence and also to educate 
women on the legal resources available to them to fight it. 
In some states like Orissa where we work, rates of rape, 
sex-trafficking and sex-selective abortion are on the rise. 
This highlights the need for these grassroots campaigns 
led by the women we train. THP- India reported that the 
involvement of men in the campaign in 2014 was promising 
sign of a shifting cultural attitude about women’s rights.

Stopping violence against women
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Bangladesh

Mitali Mohanto
Mitali Mohanto is a student of the adult literacy 
centre run by woman leader Putal Mohanto who 
was trained by The Hunger Project. Mitali can now 
read, write and do simple math.

Nibedita Haldar
“I am no longer a passive woman. Now, I am an 
unleashed and flourishing woman.” Nibedita 
is chairperson of her village’s development 
committee, and is working to stop violence against 
women, child marriage, and dowry practice.

Shapla Banu
“I stopped my own child marriage.” Shapla learned 
about child marriage from The Hunger Project, and 
stood up to her parents to stop herself being mar-
ried off to an older man. Now she is a role model to 
other girls in her village. 

What our partners achieved thanks to Australian investment in 2014:

13,537
women and men were 

mobilised to action through 

744 Vision, Commitment, 
Action workshops delivered 

by The Hunger Project across 

155 unions in Bangladesh.

474
women and men were 
trained as Animators, 

volunteer leaders 
taking a frontline role 

in advancing their 
communities towards 

the end of hunger.

1,965
births were registered. 
Birth registration is a 
fundamental human 

right, and it means it is 
easier for mothers to 

access health services 
for their children. 

112
child marriages 
were stopped.

Since 2000, THP-Bangladesh has celebrated National 
Girl Child Day every September – and since 2012, the UN 
has recognised it as an international day of celebration 
too. Although it’s a celebration, its purpose is serious: to 
improve the status of, and end discrimination against, girls 
in Bangladesh. In 2014, more than 600,000 people marked 
Girl Child Day across 61 out of Bangladesh’s 64 districts. 
The focus was on education, nutrition, and stopping child 
marriage. For as long as girls are treated inferior and less 
valuable than boys, the devastating cycle of malnutrition 
will continue – and this will have negative flow on effects for 
Bangladesh, including for the economy.

Girl Child Day stops 
discrimination

Women leaders trained by The Hunger Project in Bangladesh 
learned how to run courtyard meetings (literally meetings 
held in the main meeting areas of a village or in household 
courtyards) to educate tens of thousands of families on topics 
like maternal and child health and nutrition; proper hygiene; 
and stopping child marriage, domestic violence and dowry 
practice. These courtyard meetings are effective because 
they happen close to the homes of our village partners. 
For example, when mothers and fathers in areas where 
we work were asked why they enrolled their girl children 
in primary school, 96% attributed their decision to our 
courtyard meetings.

Courtyard meetings mean 
more girls in school

Activities contributing to the enrolment 
of girl children in primary school in 2014

Courtyard
meetings

Other 
activities

4%

96%
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People in our community Highlights of the year

Our CEO Cathy Burke was named 
in The Australian Financial Review 
and Westpac 100 Women of 
Influence Awards, which celebrate 
‘bold, energetic women, capturing 
the spirit of change and helping 
Australia shape a vibrant, inclusive 
future’. This is fantastic recognition 
for Cathy’s leadership of The Hunger 
Project Australia since 1998. 

Thanks to pro bono representation by Clayton 
Utz we achieved a momentous legal victory 
that will also have a positive impact on many 
other Australian charitable organisations. 
The Federal Court granted Public Benevolent 
Status (PBI) to The Hunger Project Australia 
and one of the most important effects of that 
decision is our ability to access fringe tax 
benefits. This is a key tool in attracting and 
retaining talent in our sector, so important as 
we work to maximise the funds we can send 
to our programmes. 

Cathy Burke named in 100 Women of Influence Awards

The Hunger Project v 
The Commissioner of Taxation

For more on the 
Awards and who else 

was named: 

“I feel very proud to be part of such an 
illustrious group of women. Winning this 
award means wonderful visibility for our 
women partners in the villages where we 
work who truly show incredible influence, 

negotiating the public/private space 
to achieve huge outcomes like water, 

sanitation and education. I have learned 
how to influence through their example.”

- Cathy Burke

Jacinta McDonell is the co-founder 
of Anytime Fitness in Australia 
and has visited our work in Malawi 
twice (most recently she took her 
14 year old daughter with her 
too). Her philosophy is that with 
all the opportunities that we have 
in Australia giving back is just 
something that we should be doing. 
Jacinta was the driving force behind 

Anytime Fitness partnering with 
The Hunger Project and committing 
to raise $5 million through the 
Human Kind Foundation for our 
work in the next 5 years. Now, she 
is harnessing the power of the 
Anytime Fitness community to 
enable our village partners to make 
changes in their lives.

Jacinta McDonell

Read more on Jacinta:
 Anytime Fitness’ company ethos is based on 
changing lives, it’s what we do every day. This is also 
what The Hunger Project does and it seemed like just 
something I had to do.

“ “

Patrice Gibbons’ ethical, socially 
responsible jewellery label Zurii was 
born out of her trip to Uganda with 
The Hunger Project on the Business 
Chicks Immersion & Leadership 
Programme. She met our village 
partners who were participating 
in our bead-making programme 
and saw that they had limited 

opportunities despite the beautiful 
handicrafts they were creating. 
Patrice had a vision to connect those 
women with the Australian market 
to give them an income to buy food 
and send their children to school. 
Now, she invests 10% of Zurii’s net 
profits in The Hunger Project.

Patrice Gibbons

Read more on the 
beginnings of Zurii: 

 I saw women who were faced with such incredible 
adversity, yet they were doing amazing things in their 
community – they were changing theirs and other people’s 
lives. I came back thinking ‘with all of the opportunity 
we have here, we’ve got no excuse not to be the most 
extraordinary version of ourselves’.

“ “
Navali’s visit to Australia
In September 2014, Commonwealth 
Bank sponsored the second annual 
Hunger Project village partner visit to 
Australia.  Navali Garasia, a 24-year 
old Elected Women Representative 
from India, was the featured guest 
speaker at 15 events held over 2 weeks. 
1,200 people attended the events, 
including 700 Commonwealth Bank 
staff and clients, and 400 Hunger 
Project investors and supporters.  
Navali shared her experience of being 
the first women from her village to 
attend school, and how as an Elected 
Woman Representative trained by The 
Hunger Project, she got funding for 4 
schools to be built in her village. With 
all the obstacles that stood in her way, 
her bold and resilient leadership is 
particularly incredible.

A collection of reflections 
from our investors who 
were inspired by Navali’s 
boldness and courage: 

Data by the people, for the people
Our grassroots model of leadership means that we are 
able to empower our village partners to monitor their 
own progress and track our impact globally through 
‘Participatory Monitoring & Evaluation’. We train our 
partners to collect data locally to see what’s working, what’s 
not and why – and make the necessary changes to address 
issues in their communities. This also puts the responsibility 
for taking action into the hands of our village partners, and 
allows us to share data to be accountable and transparent to 
you, our investors.

For more about 
measuring our impact: 

For all the details: 

Olivia Ruello is Executive Manager, 
Culture and Organisational 
Capability with the Corporate 
Financial Services (CFS) Division 
of Commonwealth Bank. Olivia has 
been the driving force to develop 
and support Change Leaders within 
the Bank through our immersion 
trips to India, and is responsible 
for managing the Elected Business 

Representative (EBR) programme. 
The EBR programme is modelled 
on the Federation system in 
India where Elected Women 
Representatives affect positive 
changes for their villages. Olivia 
has lead three CFS immersion trips 
to India and is a Global Investor 
personally in The Hunger Project.

Olivia Ruello

 My vision for the EBR programme at Commonwealth 
Bank is to strengthen the collective force of our Change 
Leaders, unifying them to bring about collaboration and 
positive change for our staff and customers. Personally, 
I have seen the work of The Hunger Project and that has 
compelled me to become a Global Investor too.

“ “

For the Commonwealth Bank 
team’s insight from their trip 

to India in 2014:

http://thp.org.au/news/cu-and-hunger-project-australia-celebrate-court-win-giving-greater-tax-certainty-fundraising-ch
http://thp.org.au/news/our-ceo-cathy-burke-winner-100-women-influence
http://thp.org.au/news/our-ceo-cathy-burke-winner-100-women-influence
http://www.jacintamcdonell.com.au/the-hunger-project/the-hunger-project-malawi-2014/%20http://
http://www.jacintamcdonell.com.au/the-hunger-project/the-hunger-project-malawi-2014/%20
https://www.womeninfocus.com.au/t5/Entrepreneurship/Patrice-Gibbons-on-the-beginnings-of-Zurii/ba-p/1672
https://www.womeninfocus.com.au/t5/Entrepreneurship/Patrice-Gibbons-on-the-beginnings-of-Zurii/ba-p/1672
http://thp.org.au/news/celebrating-unstoppable-women
http://thp.org.au/news/celebrating-unstoppable-women
http://thp.org/our-work/measuring-our-work/
http://thp.org/our-work/measuring-our-work/
http://thp.org.au/news/cu-and-hunger-project-australia-celebrate-court-win-giving-greater-tax-certainty-fundraising-ch
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5Ds_LOX09DE
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5Ds_LOX09DE
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In 2014 we marked the third 
year of our close partnership 
with Commonwealth Bank 
and McKinsey & Company. 60 
executives from the Corporate 
Financial Services division have 
gone through our immersion 
Programme in India to date and 
have become ‘Change Leaders’. 
As a result they are now leading 
transformative cultural change 
that is driving innovation, 
empowerment and ownership 

in the Bank. 

Thanks to a referral from our work 
with Commonwealth Bank, we 
created a new partnership with 
insurance and financial services 
company Sovereign in New 
Zealand in late 2014. This is the 
first collaboration by The Hunger 
Project Australia in New Zealand, 
and together with Sovereign we 
will develop a cultural leadership 
programme for the company. We 
are excited that over the next 3 
years, 10% of Sovereign’s staff 
will participate in our immersion 
programme in India. The first trip 
took place in March 2015.

Commonwealth Bank’s Executive 
General Manager, Michael Cant, 
participated in the Programme for 
the first time in February:

“The trip was an incredible 
personal and leadership 
development experience.  There 
were many learnings for us all: 
the importance of having a clear 
purpose and vision; the power of 
genuinely caring and wanting to 
help others; and finally, the ability 
of leaders to impact so many others 
through the ripple effect.”

Our work in Australia

Transformative leadership = 

a new kind of leadership: 

not top-down, 

authority-based leadership, 

but leadership that 
awakens people to 
their own power — 

leadership “with” people 

rather than 

leadership “over” people. 

One of our core principles is 
transformative leadership and 
through this lens we delivered a 
number of workshops to Australian 
businesses in 2014. 

•    Qantas commissioned The 
Hunger Project Australia CEO 
Cathy Burke to present on 
leadership to their staff and 
participate in a panel discussion 
featuring their senior executive team.

•    We led two Reimagining 
Business Leadership workshops 
for global biotechnology company 
Biogen Idec’s people and culture 
champions and global clinical 
operations leadership team.

•    We delivered a Rethinking 
What’s Possible workshop for 
financial services company 
Money3’s top managers.

•    We ran a Rethinking What’s 
Possible workshop for the Youth 
Leaders of the World Parks 
Congress, with a specific focus 
on helping these young people to 
identify and articulate their inner 
leader and to learn techniques to 
overcome challenges and barriers 
in becoming more effective leaders. 

Business Leadership Workshops

Corporate Programmes

We acknowledge each of our 162 
Global Investors who contributed 
to our work consciously and 
deliberately in 2014. We love 
hearing about the way you bring 
your investment and ‘stretch’ into 
your daily lives. In 2014 our State 
Development Boards took the lead 
on growing our Global Investor 
community: in New South Wales 
the Board formed a Community 
of Practice to share and expand 
Global Investors’ knowledge about 
our work, and to strengthen their 
own leadership. In Queensland, 
a new Development Board was 
created to lead the expansion of 
our community there. In Victoria 
and Western Australia, our 

Development Boards continued 
to connect Global Investors with 
each other and The Hunger Project 
through appreciation nights and 
other get-togethers. 

We acknowledge in particular the 
visionary, long-term investments 
made in 2014 by a number of our 
Global Investors, including 
Nicholas Moore, Cameron O’Reilly, 
Josh Rogers and Fortitude 
Foundation. These multi-year 
commitments mean that together 
with our village partners we can 
better plan our activities and 
progress into the future.

Our National Board oversees our 
governance and makes sure we’re 
transparent, effective, efficient and 
compliant. Our State Development 
Boards engage our investors, 
connect us to new investors, and 
hold special events that create the 
beautiful community that is The 
Hunger Project. In 2014 we created 
a new Board, the Business Chicks 
Alumni Board, that will harness the 
energy of our Trippers to grow our 
investor community even more. All 
of our Board members are leaders 
in the end of hunger, and we 
couldn’t do it without them. 

Our Unleashed Women Leaders 
Initiative investors choose to direct 
their investment to unleash the 
leadership of women living in rural 
India, Bangladesh and Africa. In 
2014 these investors collectively 
raised AU$321,000 for women’s 
leadership programmes – which 
means that to date through this 

Initiative, they have helped us 
to raise AU$1.55M to empower 
women leaders. We initially started 
this Initiative for the period 2011-
2013 and it is so affirming to see so 
many of our investors go beyond 
that and continue their investment to 
empowering women leaders in 2014. 

Global Investor Group

Our National and 
State Boards Unleashed Women Leaders Initiative

“The empowerment of girls 
and access to education 
is the right strategy for 

India and a topic dear to my 
heart given my experience 
of bringing up my own 2 

daughters. 
I am happy to continue 

my pledge this year to The 
Hunger Project.”

- Ben Ng, Global Investor

“I have no fear.”
- Sabitri, Elected Woman Representative trained 

by The Hunger Project in India 

For more from our Global 
Investor community, see 

the Global Investor Group 
2014 Report:

Sovereign’s CEO,
Symon Brewis-Weston: 

“The learnings we gain from 
these women will help us become 
leaders with true authenticity and 
inspire others. It is about showing 
what is possible from leading 
courageously. In India, where 
female leaders are a minority, the 
local councils introduced quotas 
and the communities have been 
transformed. It’s inspiring to see 
how well it’s worked.”

Our National and State Development Boards at the September Strategy Day

http://thp.org.au/sites/default/files/Global_Investor_Report_2014.pdf
http://thp.org.au/sites/default/files/Global_Investor_Report_2014.pdf
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Business Chicks hike4hunger

What’s For Lunch?

THP young leaders

MECCA partnership

Two groups undertook fun but 
challenging hike4hunger journeys 
in 2014. In WA, hikers took on 
the 7-day, 135km Cape2Cape hike 
from Cape Naturaliste to Cape 
Leeuwin, led by our intrepid WA 
Development Board members 
Deborah Protter and Karen 
O’Donahoo. In Victoria, Jeannine 
Lewis led a 3-day, 83km ‘hike and 
bike’ along the Great Victorian Rail 
Trail from Yea to Mansfield. The

groups collectively raised $80K 
for our work, which is a fantastic 
achievement. 

But hike4hunger isn’t simply about 
going on a hike and raising money: 
it’s also about spiritually connecting 
with our partners ending hunger 
in their communities, and building 
a community of people here in 
Australia who are taking action to 
walk the journey with them.

The Victorian Development Board 
delivered a brand-new pilot 
leadership programme to 4 young 
people in 2014. It encouraged 
our future leaders to find their 
own strength, creativity, and - in 
the words of one participant - 
“their own awesomeness”. Each 
participant committed to raising 
$5K for The Hunger Project, which 
they did through events like a 
catwalk event, a cooking night, a 

sponsored fast, and a ‘meaning of a 
good life’ conference. 

We were blown away by their 
passion and commitment to ending 
hunger – and how they articulated 
their leadership insights. They’re 
taking on the world and we’re right 
there with them! The pilot was such 
a success that it will be expanded 
in 2015 to build even more young 
leaders in Australia.

In 2014, we created a beautiful new 
partnership with Australian beauty 
company MECCA Cosmetica.  
Like us, they believe in “achieving 
greatness through empowerment”. 
The first of many MECCA initiatives 
to come, they created a special 
holiday beauty gift set called ‘Loved 
& Adored’ that was on sale for 
Christmas 2014, with the proceeds 
invested in our work empowering 
women. The product even made #2 

on MECCA founder Jo Horgan’s 
holiday wish list sent to MECCA 
mailing list in early December – and 
subsequently completely sold out! 

The inaugural What’s For Lunch? 
Campaign was held from 16 to 22 
June 2014 and raised $19K for our 
work. As a new grassroots initiative 
led by the WA Development Board, 
it was successful in broadening our 
circle of investors: 70% of people 
who gave to What’s For Lunch? 
were new to The Hunger Project. 

What’s For Lunch? got lots of 
media attention, with coverage on 

Channels Nine and Seven, 720 
Perth and 6PR Radio, and in The 
West Australian. The public launch 
of the campaign was headed up by 
campaign ambassador and ex-West 
Coast Eagles coach John Worsfold, 
who also visited 2 colleges in 
Perth and spoke with students 
about the issues of chronic hunger 
and poverty. Those students also 
actively collected donations for 
the campaign. 

Business Chicks with Elected Women Representatives in India

Photo credit – Anna Zhu for THP

We love the spirit and blue-
sky-thinking that our Business 
Chicks Immersion & Leadership 
Programme inspires. This unique 
and game-changing partnership 
with Business Chicks, now in its 3rd 
year, is designed to unleash women 
leaders in Australia and create a 
space for women to connect, stretch 
and make a difference in the world.

In 2014, we ran a record of 3 trips 
to India, Malawi and Uganda with 
31 Trippers visiting our work – 
and raising $356K in total for our 
programmes globally. With our 2014 
Trippers, we now have a 75-strong 
Alumni network, represented by 
a newly created Business Chicks 
Alumni Board with can-do, energetic 
directors across 4 states. Since 2012, 
our Trippers have collectively raised 
an incredible $1.1M through their 
fundraising initiatives.

Rethinking What’s Possible
In 2014 we held 23 Rethinking 
What’s Possible workshops around 
the country, attended by 189 people. 
The workshops introduce people 
to The Hunger Project model, our 
leadership lessons from the village 
and also act as a catalyst for people 
to become investors or support our 
work in another way. 

In April our talented Global 
Investor and public speaking coach 
Joanna Martin once again trained 
11 new facilitators to lead the 
workshops. We’ve heard from these 
new facilitators that the opportunity 
to speak publically about their role 
in ending hunger is powerful and 
unleashes their leadership too.

Leah Ong on her experience in 
Malawi:

“Sometimes we have to ask the 
hard questions of ourselves and 
often we avoid these questions 
because we already know the 
answers. We should be bold 
enough to listen to that voice and 
ask What Next?” 

This could be you. See why 
you should apply:

“It wasn’t supposed to be easy organising a fundraising event….” 
– Wei-Li, on the THP young leaders programme:

hike4hunger hikers in Western Australia

What’s For Lunch? ambassador and ex-West 
Coast Eagles Coach John Worsfold with school 
students in Perth

Transforming Executive Women Now

“It’s like neon lights over 
here, it’s like Vegas!”

- Vanessa Toet after 
attending one of our 
Rethinking What’s 

Possible workshops

“Once I met The Hunger Project 
Australia’s inspiring CEO Cathy 

Burke and learnt of the work 
they’ve been doing, I knew 
that we just had to support 

an initiative that encourages 
women in the developing world 
to become agents of change in 

their communities.” 

– Jo Horgan, Founder and CEO 
of MECCA Brands

In 2014 The Hunger Project 
Australia Victorian Development 
Board conceived and launched 
a new workshop series 
“Transforming Executive Women 
Now”, that brought like-minded 
professional women together 
to meet regularly and develop 
strategies to move their careers to 
the next level.  Guest presenters for 
the workshops included investors 

and supporters of The Hunger 
Project including our National 
Board Chair Diane Grady; Alison 
Watkins, CEO of Coca-Cola Amatil; 
and Kathryn Fagg, Board Director 
of the Reserve Bank of Australia. 
Workshop participants included 
senior executive women from 
Telstra, Seek, Ranstad, and Ernst & 
Young.

THP young leaders participants with the 
Victorian Development Board’s Christine 
Khor and Tanya Southey

http://thp.org.au/communities/business-chicks
http://www.mcie.edu.au/recipes-from-my-mother/
http://thp.org.au/communities/business-chicks
http://www.mcie.edu.au/recipes-from-my-mother/
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Looking forward Thank you

We’re working with the MECCA team to 
create a ‘road map’ for our blossoming 
partnership in 2015, including a group 
of 22 Mecca employees who will drive 
the first-ever Mecca Brands Women’s 
Project. They will develop, champion and 
implement initiatives that support our 
partnership and celebrate our shared 
belief that women can be empowered 
to achieve greatness. We think this 
alignment with MECCA will open up 
immense possibilities for MECCA staff 
and customers in unleashing their 
potential too.

Anytime Fitness has made a visionary 
commitment to our work, pledging to 
invest $5M over the next 5 years in our 
work empowering children and their 
families to transform their lives via 
their new fundraising arm, the Human 
Kind Foundation. We are very excited 
about the potential of this partnership 
to engage Anytime Fitness customers 
and franchisees. The team has already 
travelled to Malawi to learn from our 
village partners, and what came out of 
their leadership insights there will 
shape what’s to come for this awesome 
new partnership. 

MECCA

We’re putting ourselves 
out of business by 2030. 
The Hunger Project has 
talked about how ending 
hunger is possible, and now 
there’s growing consensus 
globally that it IS possible to 
end hunger by 2030. The UN 
has set a vision for the world 
so that we all work 
collectively and 
collaboratively towards the 
end of hunger. This vision 
is broken down into 17 
Sustainable Development 
Goals that will guide the 
future plans of governments, 
civil society and NGOs, 

including The Hunger Project.
We always knew that it 
would take much more than 
‘business as usual’ to end 
hunger, so this alignment 
from governments and 
international organisations 
to this deadline is a crucial 
tipping point for the end 
of hunger. This is a really 
exciting time for us, our 
village partners and for you.

On behalf of the 20.6 million 
people reached by The Hunger 
Project globally, thank you for 
your investment in 2014. Your 
partnership is a crucial piece of 
the puzzle: with you it is possible 
for women and men living in rural 
India, Bangladesh and Africa to 
make huge transformational shifts 
in their thinking and actions. This 
is what gives them the vision, the 
energy and the spirit to end their 
own hunger. Thank you. 

Your money is shaping a new world. 
Your commitment connects you to a 
global community with an unwavering 
determination to end hunger. We hope 
that by being part of this extraordinary 
movement, your capacity for expansive 
leadership and extraordinary creativity 
is unleashed too. In this report we’d 
like to recognise all of our investors 
who generously contributed to our 
work in 2014:

General fund investors
The largest number of investors with 
The Hunger Project give to the general 
fund - either through a general appeal 
or campaigns such as Business Chicks 
and hike4hunger. Your power lies in 
the strength of many. Collectively, you 
enable us to direct our pool of funds to 
wherever they are needed most and can 
have the greatest impact.

Global Investor Group
These investors give a minimum 
of $5,000 annually. By investing 
consciously and purposefully, you 
have matched your resources with the 
leadership of our village partners. In 
turn, you have enabled us to distribute 
our fund to whichever country or 
programme needs them the most. Some 
Global Investors direct their investment 
through the following three groups. 

Unleashed Women Leaders 
Initiative investors*
These investors are passionately 
committed to the first of our three 
pillars: ‘Start with women’. Giving 
$10,000 or more per year for at least 
three years, either on your own or 
as part of a giving circle, you have 
chosen to specifically fund our women’s 
programmes. You are enabling women 
as key change agents to take bold steps 
to end their own hunger.

Investors who give by 
Programme, Sector and/or 
Country*
By giving to specific programmes, 
sectors and/or countries, these 
investors allow us to further progress 
our work on multiple fronts, including 
our microfinance and maternal and 
child health programmes, and in 

countries such as Ethiopia and Senegal. 
You are empowering our partners to be 
the authors of their own success.     
 

Epicentre Underwriters*
These investors enable the women and 
men in our Epicentre communities in 
Africa to mobilise themselves to end 
their own hunger and poverty. With 
your partnership, they can create solid 
and integrated programmes, including 
education, sanitation, microfinance, and 
health, to ultimately achieve prosperous 
and self-reliant communities.

In kind contributions 
and volunteers
Many people and companies give their 
time and/or expertise to The Hunger 
Project Australia, and assist us in 
many aspects of our work. They are 
invaluable to us, especially in helping 
us to be as effective and efficient as 
possible with minimal resources.

Thank you all for your partnership. It is 
integral to our work in ending chronic 
hunger by 2030.

*Investors who give $5,000 or more to these funds 
and programmes are also part of the Global 
Investor Group.

Ending Hunger by 2030

In partnership with you, 
we can end chronic hunger by 2030.

Anytime Fitness

For more on the 
growing consensus:

What are the Sustainable 
Development Goals?

“I have a little bit of 
courage, but I have a lot 

when we’re together.”

- Shanti, Elected Woman 
Representative trained by 

The Hunger Project in India

Photo Credit: Studio Eksaat

“At this rate, 
we’ll be 

out of business 
in 16 years. 

We’re excited.”

http://siteresources.worldbank.org/INTPROSPECTS/Resources/334934-1327948020811/8401693-1397074077765/Prosperity_for_All_Final_2014.pdf
http://advocacy.thp.org/2014/08/08/mdgs-to-sdgs/
http://siteresources.worldbank.org/INTPROSPECTS/Resources/334934-1327948020811/8401693-1397074077765/Prosperity_for_All_Final_2014.pdf
http://advocacy.thp.org/2014/08/08/mdgs-to-sdgs/
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The Hunger Project Australia National Board

Diane Grady is a Director and 
Chairperson of The Hunger 
Project Australia. She is 
on the Board of Directors 
of Macquarie Group and 
Pacific Industrial Services, a 
senior advisor to McKinsey 
& Company, and Chairman 
of Ascham School. Diane 
was formerly a Director of 
Bluescope Steel, Woolworths, 
Goodman Group, Lend 
Lease and The Sydney Opera 
House. Diane also previously 
held the role of President 
of Chief Executive Women 
(CEW), and chaired the CEW 
task force that published the 
‘CEO Kit for Attracting and 
Retaining Female Talent’.

Bruce Beeren is a fellow 
of CPA Australia and the 
Australian Institute of 
Company Directors, and has 
over 30 years’ experience 
in the energy industry. He 
is currently a director of a 
number of public companies 
including Origin Energy 
and Veda Group, and is a 
Director of the Trustee of  
the Equipsuper 
Superannuation Fund.

Catherine Burke has been 
Chief Executive Officer 
of The Hunger Project 
Australia since 1998. Cathy 
has a Bachelor of Arts 
(English and Politics) and 
a Graduate Diploma in 
Applied Women’s Studies. 
She has spent time in the 
field, leading many trips to 
Africa and South Asia. 

Debra Kwasnicki is a 
Partner at Sheldon Harris 
Consulting with 15 years’ 
experience in Executive 
Search and Assessment. 
She was a Partner at Russell 
Reynolds Associates, and 
served as an independent 
management consultant 
in the technology industry. 
Prior to her consulting 
career, Debra  was General 
Manager, Customer Service 
and Quality with Telstra 
Corporation and had a 
12-year career with IBM 
Australia Limited. She was 
also Chair of the Human 
Resources Subcommittee  
for the Salvation Army 
Advisory Board. 

Rachel Akehurst is the 
principal of RSA Consulting 
and has worked in the area 
of leadership and cultural 
transformation since 1986. 
She is also on the Board of 
the Fortitude Foundation. 

Roger Massy-Greene is 
the Chairman of Networks 
NSW and is a director of 
OneVentures Pty Ltd. He 
co-founded the ASX 200 
company Excel Coal Limited 
and was its Chairman until 
2006. Mr Massy-Greene 
serves as Chairman of the 
Salvation Army’s Red Shield 
Appeal Committee in Sydney 
and of Eureka Benevolent 
Foundation, a family 
foundation.

Simon Blackburn is a Director 
in McKinsey & Company’s 
Sydney office, and has been 
with McKinsey for 17 years. 
He leads the Transformational 
Change service line for 
McKinsey’s Organisation 
practice in Asia, serving 
clients in both the private and 
public sectors. Simon also 
serves on the board of the 
Woolcock Institute of Medical 
Research and previously 
on the board of Parents as 
Teachers National Centre, 
and the Massachusetts STEM 
Collaborative. 
(From June 2014)

New South Wales Development Board

Marc Johnstone was the 
Chair of the New South 
Wales Development Board 
between Jan – Nov 2014. 
Having lived and worked in 
the UK and USA for almost 
half his adult life, Marc 
returned to Sydney in 2011 
and joined The Hunger 
Project as a Global Investor. 
Marc is an entrepreneur and 
co-founder of the Shirlaws 
group of companies, which 
provides business advisory 
and coaching services in 11 
countries via four different 
brands.

Bruce Beeren is a fellow 
of CPA Australia and the 
Australian Institute of 
Company Directors, and has 
over 30 years’ experience 
in the energy industry. He 
is currently a director of a 
number of public companies 
including Origin Energy 
and Veda Group, and is a 
Director of the Trustee of  
the Equipsuper 
Superannuation Fund.

David Bryant is the Group 
General Manager of People, 
Culture and Communications 
at St Vincent’s Health 
Australia.David’s prior 
careerexperience includes 
eight years in executive 
search, 12 years with Qantas 
as Group General Manager 
of Human Resources and 
two years as Head of Human 
Resources for Insurance 
Australia Group.

Emma Isaacs is the CEO of 
Business Chicks, Australia’s 
largest community for 
women with more than 
32,000 members. Emma 
has spent one on one time 
with Bill Gates, is a serial 
property investor, has raised 
over $5 million for charity, 
and is mother to three 
girls aged four and under.                      
(To October 2014)

Karen James was the 
Chair of the New South 
Wales Development Board 
between Nov – Dec 2014. 
She is on a heartfelt mission 
to help people in business 
find their own inner leader 
and feel empowered to be 
the change that we are all 
headed towards through 
her consultancy, KBSN. 
In her previous role at 
Commonwealth Bank, 
she co-created the CBA 
Leadership Program with 
The Hunger Project and 
McKinsey.

Simon Carter is an architect 
by background. His journey 
with sustainability has taken 
him from designing green 
buildings, to examining 
climate and ecosystem 
change in the Southern 
Ocean and Antarctica, 
and to leading a corporate 
sustainability programme 
across the Asia-Pacific for 
a large property group. He 
is a director of the boutique 
sustainability strategy 
consultancy Morphosis.

Jacinta McDonell is the Co-
Founder of Anytime Fitness 
Australia. Since its launch 
into the Australian market 
in 2008 Anytime Fitness has 
grown to over 370 outlets. 
Jacinta now sits on the board 
of Anytime Fitness Australia 
which oversees the direction 
of the Anytime Group. (From 
Sept 2014)

Xanthi Kouvatas has 20+ 
years’ experience strategically 
challenging, nurturing 
and growing some of the 
world’s biggest brands. Her 
career spans marketing and 
business leadership roles 
at Microsoft, Lion Nathan, 
Kimberly-Clark, Unilever 
and Roses Only Group. She 
spent a year in Vietnam in 
2008 working in microfinance 
with Kiva, the world’s 
largest online microfinance 
organisation. (From Feb 2014)
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Victorian Development Board

Beata Koropatwa was the Chair 
of the Victorian Development 
Board between Jan – Nov 
2014. She has a strong track 
record of successful business 
development, entrepreneurship 
and leadership for over 20 
years. Beata is currently CEO 
of Auslaser Business Solutions, 
and she has held a number 
of key positions working 
with a blue chip client list in 
Australia and globally. She has 
been responsible for strategic 
direction, growth, business 
development and success of 
each business. 

Christine Khor was the Chair 
of the Victorian Development 
Board between Nov – Dec 
2014. She is Managing Director 
of Chorus Executive, an 
executive talent management 
service in the sales, marketing 
and communications space. 
With 14 years of experience 
in recruitment and over 15 
years working for leading 
companies in product and 
marketing management, she 
now specialises in executive 
recruitment, talent assessment, 
coaching, mentoring and 
advisory services for sales, 
marketing and communications 
professionals. 

David Lyon has over 20 years’ 
experience in banking and 
finance and is currently a 
Regional Executive within 
Corporate Financial Services 
at the Commonwealth Bank 
(CBA). David has been actively 
involved in the not for profit 
sector, participating in the CBA 
leadership programme with 
The Hunger Project in India in 
2012, and previously as a board 
member and finance committee 
member of  Wesley Mission 
Victoria for five years. 

Debra Kwasnicki is a Partner 
at Sheldon Harris Consulting 
with 15 years’ experience 
in Executive Search and 
Assessment. She was a Partner 
at Russell Reynolds Associates, 
and served as an independent 
management consultant in 
the technology industry. Prior 
to her consulting career, 
Debra  was General Manager, 
Customer Service and Quality 
with Telstra Corporation and 
had a 12-year career with IBM 
Australia Limited. She was also 
Chair of the Human Resources 
Subcommittee for the Salvation 
Army Advisory Board.

 

Helen Scotts is a Management 
Consultant and Board Director 
of Hay Group management 
consultants. With 25 years’ 
experience, Helen regularly 
advises senior executives on the 
implementation of processes to 
support major business change 
and initiatives. She holds a 
Bachelor of Arts, a Bachelor 
of Social Work and a Master 
of Business (Organisational 
Development). (To May 2014)

Kathryn Fagg is a Non-
Executive Director who 
previously held senior business 
leadership roles in the logistics, 
manufacturing and banking 
sectors in Australia, New 
Zealand and Asia. She is a 
Board member of the Reserve 
Bank of Australia, Incitec Pivot 
and the Breast Cancer Network 
of Australia, and is Chair of the 
Melbourne Recital Centre. (To 
Feb 2014)

Robert Wentzel moved from 
The Netherlands, where he 
commenced his career with 
Stork NV and founded The 
Jonah Group, a consultancy 
focusing on improving safety 
performance through providing 
services in safety culture and 
leadership development. He has 
worked with a number of top 
100 Australian and international 
organisations. Robert has a 
Masters in Engineering (Mech).

Claire Whitbread is a company 
director of Whitbread Insurance 
Group which comprises the 
brands, Whitbread Insurance 
Brokers and Axis Underwriting 
Services. Since 2004, Claire 
has held many key leadership 
roles within the family 
owned business and today 
heads the Marketing and 
Communications department 
for the Group. Claire is a 
facilitator of The Hunger Project 
‘Rethinking What’s Possible’ 
workshops.

John Garrido is the General 
Manager of Exhibitions & 
Events Australia (EEA). EEA 
is an exhibition organiser that 
owns and operates several 
leading consumer events across 
Australia and New Zealand. 
With over 20 years of sales 
and leadership experience 
he’s enjoyed the ability to help 
businesses solve problems 
through the solutions he sells. 
(From Sept 2014)

Tanya Southey has over 20 
years’ experience working 
in the corporate sector 
as a Human Resources 
professional. At present, 
Tanya is the HR Director for 
Carlton and United Breweries, 
a subsidiary of SABMiller. 
Prior to this role, Tanya was a 
Partner at strategic consulting 
firm, Sheldon Harris. She has 
also held executive roles at 
General Electric and Jetstar 
Airways. (From May 2014)
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Western Australia Development Board

Deborah Protter is the 
Chair of the Western 
Australia Development 
Board.  She is passionate 
about the development 
of human potential, with 
over 30 years’ international 
experience educating, 
training and mentoring 
executives and leaders 
of government agencies, 
companies and community-
based organisations in 
education, industry, women’s 
development, public 
health and international 
development in the UK, USA, 
Europe, Australia and Asia.

Ailan Tran works for 
Hancock Prospecting Pty 
Ltd. Ailan’s commitment to 
family values, community 
service and maintaining 
good health was instilled in 
her through the leadership 
example set by her adopted 
Australian grandparents. 
These values are reflected in 
the community development 
programs of The Hunger 
Project.

Faye Longmuir has been 
a personal investor in The 
Hunger Project since 2011. 
Faye is passionate about 
being part of the team that 
aims to eradicate global 
poverty by 2030, a possibility 
in our lifetime. Faye is also a 
Private Wealth Manager with 
Macquarie Private Wealth 
in Perth, where she has 
been for the past 14 years. 
She specialises in Complex 
Asset Structures, Retirement 
Planning, Australian 
Equities and Self-Managed 
Superannuation.

Dr Gary Ward has been 
a general practitioner 
for over 25 years, having 
done physician training at 
Royal Perth Hospital and 
Cambridge UK in the 1980s. 
He has worked in country 
and suburban general 
practice and has skills 
in both mainstream and 
complementary medicine. 
His primary interest is in 
diagnostic and preventative 
health (physical and mental) 
and is the primary care 
physician to many prominent 
West Australians.

Karen O’Donahoo has been 
a passionate advocate, 
fundraiser and personal 
investor in The Hunger 
Project since visiting 
Bangladesh with The Hunger 
Project in 2012. Karen 
works as a Project Controls 
Manager for Clough Limited.

Rachel Akehurst is the 
principal of RSA Consulting 
and has worked in the area 
of leadership and cultural 
transformation since 1986. 
She is also on the Board of 
the Fortitude Foundation. 

Queensland Development Board

Cathie Reid was the Chair of 
the Queensland Development 
Board between Jan – Aug 
2014. She is Managing 
Partner of APHS, one of 
Australia’s largest pharmacy 
service providers to the 
hospital, oncology and 
aged care sector. She is also 
founder of APHS Packaging. 
Cathie was named one of the 
Top 100 Women of Influence 
by the Australian Financial 
Review in 2013.

Josh Rogers has been 
actively involved with The 
Hunger Project for 14+ years. 
He was also a founding 
member of the NSW 
Development Board. Josh 
has decades of experience 
in developing start-ups and 
high growth businesses, is a 
founder of technology fund 
Carthona Capital, director 
and shareholder of The 
Search Party, non-Executive 
Chairman of Ondi.com, and 
Advisory Board Member 
for Real Time Minds. (From 
September 2014)

Amelia Lee is an architect, 
wife, and mother to three 
children aged six and under. 
Together with five colleagues, 
she established DC8 Studio 
in 2009, a multi-disciplinary 
architecture and design firm 
with studios in Brisbane 
and Sydney. DC8 Studio’s 
unique expertise, history 
and commercial knowledge 
embed value, through design. 

Belinda Brosnan was the 
Chair of the Queensland 
Development Board between 
Sept – Dec 2014. She has 
20 years’ senior leadership 
experience throughout 
Australia and globally 
working on brands including 
News Ltd, Macquarie Bank, 
AVJennings and Mirvac. 
A qualified International 
Coach Federation executive 
coach and human resources 
professional, Belinda is 
currently Managing Director 
of HR Junction, consulting to 
organisations including ASX 
listed companies in the area 
of organisational change, 
leadership and diversity. 

Lesley McLellan has a 
diverse background in which 
arts and education have 
been dominant themes. 
Her involvement with The 
Hunger Project, however, 
began when her career 
path diverged into social 
entrepreneurship. Lesley 
visited India in 2008 with 
The Hunger Project and she 
has been a personal investor 
and advocate of The Hunger 
Project ever since.
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Business Chicks Alumni Development Board

Catherine Brain is the Chair of 
the Business Chicks Alumni 
Development Board. She has 
dedicated her career to date 
to a range of roles working 
across organisational design, 
business transformation 
and strategic change. She 
has worked across a range 
of community groups and 
initiatives focused on making 
true sustainable change 
happen. She participated 
in the Business Chicks 
Leadership and Immersion 
Program in India in 2014.

 Candace Wu’s go-getting 
attitude had her commit 
to raising $20,000 and in 
doing so created The Walk 
4 Hunger together with her 
friend; this is a 100km walk 
from Sydney to Wollongong 
in 24hrs. She completed the 
100kms and together they 
raised almost $60,000 in 
total. She participated in the 
Business Chicks Leadership 
and Immersion Program 
in Uganda in 2013. (To Nov 
2014)

Morgan Martin is a Human 
Resources Professional with 
over 4 years’ experience in 
the professional services 
sector. She participated 
in the Business Chicks 
Leadership and Immersion 
Program in India in 2014.  
(To June 2014)

Patrice Gibbons is a writer 
and communications 
specialist with over 15 
years’ experience in 
journalism, conferencing 
and content development. 
She has worked on leading 
publications in Australia and 
the UK and is passionate 
about the art of story telling. 
She participated in the 
Business Chicks Leadership 
and Immersion Program in 
Uganda in 2013.  

Simone Miller’s professional 
career has been focused 
in the areas of people 
leadership, operational 
management, learning & 
development, and, for the last 
8 years, workforce analytics 
and human resource strategy. 
She participated in the 
Business Chicks Leadership 
and Immersion Program in 
India in 2014.

 

Sue-Ellen Gray brings a broad 
experience in marketing 
and communications to the 
Alumni Development Board. 
Most recently her roles for a 
not-for-profit to support and 
promote social enterprise, 
university and TAFE have 
combined her skills with 
her passion for encouraging 
education, empowering 
others to help themselves, 
and others. She participated 
in the Business Chicks 
Leadership and Immersion 
Program in Uganda in 2013. 

Financial Overview

How we spend our funds* Where we send our funds

International Programmes and Support 83%

Community Education 5%

Fundraising Costs 7%

Accountability and Administration 5%

THP-Ghana 18% 

THP-Uganda 13%

THP-Benin 12% 

THP-Burkina Faso 12% 

THP-India 11% 

THP-Ethiopia 9% 

THP-Senegal 8% 

THP-Bangladesh 7%

THP-Malawi 5%

THP-Mozambique 5%
*   The figures are expressed as a percentage of total 

income for 2014. For every dollar invested, this is how 
The Hunger Project Australia spends it.

The positive impact that we 
have had in our Programme 
Countries in Africa and South 
Asia reflects our effectiveness 
and efficiency in our costs 
locally and therefore the 
powerful investment that we 
can make overseas.  

This impact is what engages 
our long-term investors – they 
see results. The impact has also 
attracted new investors into our 
Australian community. All of our 
investors have made it possible for 
us to achieve another record year 
in terms of income for The Hunger 
Project Australia. Our total revenue 
for 2014 was $4.38M, which 
represents an 8% increase on 2013 
and a 34% increase on 2012.
  
This continual growth is a 
wonderful indicator of the 
commitment of our investors to 
empowering women and men to 
transform their futures. Once again,
the ground-breaking leadership 
programme that we run with 

Commonwealth Bank continues to 
offer them (and us) great value, and 
delivers outstanding results. We 
are delighted that our leadership 
programme is now spreading to 
other organisations. In 2014, we 
signed on new partner Sovereign 
in New Zealand to deliver this 
profound transformative journey 
to their staff too.  Support from our 
investors who direct their funds 
to our Epicentres in Africa also 
grew in 2014, which is fantastic 
recognition of our Epicentre 
Strategy. Our partnership with 
Business Chicks continues to raise 
significant funds for our work, with 
Trippers also unleashing their own 
leadership through the Immersion 
Programme, and becoming highly 
engaged and motivated advocates 
for The Hunger Project. 

88% of our total income in 2014 
was spent on programmes, with 
83% directed overseas to empower 
our village partners in rural Africa, 
India and Bangladesh, forming the 
core part of The Hunger Project’s 

work globally. The other 5% was 
spent in Australia to educate and 
mobilise our investor community, 
which forms an important part of 
our local advocacy and awareness 
raising activities. Both of these 
percentages remain consistent 
with 2013.

Fundraising costs and 
accountability and administration 
costs also remained the same as in 
2013, at just 7% and 5% of our total 
income respectively. We are proud 
that our costs have remained at a 
constant low, and that they have 
stayed in line with our spending 
on programmes between 2013 and 
2014. These figures are testament 
to our ongoing commitment to 
carry out our work as efficiently 
and effectively as possible, and to 
the goodwill and hard work of The 
Hunger Project Australia team, 
Board members, volunteers and 
pro bono partners.
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Directors’ Report
The Directors present this report on the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2014. 

DIRECTORS

The names and details of the Company’s Directors in office during the financial year and until the date of this 
report are as follows. Directors were in office for this entire period unless otherwise stated.

Names Qualifications, experience and special responsibilities

Diane Grady
(Chairperson)
(appointed 4 June 
2010)

Diane Grady is on the Board of Directors of Macquarie Group and Australian Stationery 
Industries, and a senior advisor to McKinsey & Company.  She is Chairman of Ascham 
School, a member the NSW Innovation and Productivity Council, and a member of Heads 
Over Heels Advisory Board. Diane was formerly a Director of Bluescope Steel, 
Woolworths, Goodman Group, Lend Lease and The Sydney Opera House.  Diane also 
previously held the role of President of Chief Executive Women and was a partner of 
McKinsey & Co.

Rachel Akehurst
(appointed 22 June 
2012)

Rachel Akehurst is the principal of RSA Consulting and has worked in the area of 
leadership and cultural transformation since 1986. She is passionate about creating 
possibility for individuals, groups, organisations and communities through transformation. 
Rachel originally trained as a psychologist and worked for Shell International in London 
for 7 years before moving to work in the Netherlands and Australia, where she has been 
for the last 20 years.  She is also on the Board of the Fortitude Foundation.  

Bruce Beeren
(appointed 14 August 
2008)

Bruce Beeren is a fellow of CPA Australia and the Australian Institute of Company 
Directors and has over 30 years’ experience in the energy industry. He is currently a 
Director of a number of public companies including Contact Energy and Veda Group and 
is a Director of the Trustee of the Equipsuper Superannuation Fund. 

Simon Blackburn 
(appointed 4 June 
2014)

Simon Blackburn is a Director in McKinsey & Company’s Sydney office, and has been 
with McKinsey for 17 years. He has a particular passion for organisational change and 
development including the theme of leader-driven change, and he leads the 
Transformational Change service line for McKinsey's Organisation practice in Asia, 
serving clients in both the private and public sectors. He has a strong personal interest in 
transformation, with a focus on changing behaviours to drive lasting performance 
improvement.
Simon originally trained as an engineer and spent 11 years in McKinsey's Boston office 
prior to returning to Australia in 2008. His experience spans organisation, strategy, 
operations, information technology, and marketing & sales.
In addition to the National Board of The Hunger Project, Simon serves on the board of the 
Woolcock Institute of Medical Research and previously on the board of Parents as 
Teachers National Centre, and the Massachusetts STEM Collaborative.

Catherine Burke
(appointed 3 April 
1998)

Catherine Burke has been Chief Executive Officer of The Hunger Project Australia since 
1998. Cathy has a Bachelor of Arts (English and Politics) and a Graduate Diploma in 
Applied Women’s Studies. She has spent time in the field, leading many trips to Africa 
and South Asia.  

Debra Kwasnicki
(appointed 22 June 
2012)

Debra Kwasnicki is a Partner at Sheldon Harris Consulting with 15 years’ experience in 
Executive Search and Assessment. She was a Partner at Russell Reynolds Associates, and 
served as an independent management consultant in the technology industry. Prior to her 
consulting career, Debra was General Manager, Customer Service and Quality with Telstra 
Corporation and had a 12-year career with IBM Australia Limited, where she served in a 
variety of sales, management, technical support and human resources roles. She was also 
Chair of the Human Resources Subcommittee for the Salvation Army Advisory Board. 
Debra took a sabbatical in 2012, living and working in Malawi, volunteering for The 
Hunger Project in Africa, and assisting the organisation to improve their operational 
effectiveness in working towards their goal of ending hunger and poverty.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Roger Massy-Greene
(appointed 22 No-
vember 2010)

Roger Massy-Greene is the Chairman of Networks NSW, the joint venture entity that 
comprises Ausgrid, Endeavour Energy and Essential Energy, the three electricity 
distribution networks in NSW. Mr Massy-Greene is Executive Chairman of Eureka 
Capital Partners, a private investment company and a Director of OneVentures Pty Ltd, a 
technology venture capital firm. He co-founded the ASX 200 company Excel Coal 
Limited and was its Chairman until its acquisition by Peabody Energy in 2006. Mr 
Massy-Greene serves as Chairman of the Salvation Army’s Sydney Advisory Committee 
and of Eureka Benevolent Foundation, a family foundation focused on social 
disadvantage issues. He is the Deputy President of Cranbrook School in Sydney.

NET DEFICIT AFTER INCOME TAX

The deficit of the company for the financial year was $514,740 (2013: deficit of $697,863). This deficit results 
from costs of global projects exceeding current year’s net income.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Following a review of the company’s operations during the financial year and the results of those 
operations, in the opinion of the directors, the company performed above expectations.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company during the course of the year was as a Charitable Organisation.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the year.

AFTER BALANCE DATE EVENTS

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may 
significantly affect the operations of the company, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the 
company in subsequent financial years.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The company expects to maintain the present status and level of operations and hence there are no likely known 
developments in future financial years.

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The company's operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulation under a law of the 
Commonwealth or of a State or Territory.

DIVIDENDS

The company is prohibited from declaring and paying dividends, being a company limited by guarantee.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

OPTIONS

No options over issued shares or interests in the company were granted during or since the end of the financial 
year. Furthermore, there were no options outstanding at the date of this report.

INDEMNITIES GRANTED

During or since the financial year, the company has paid premiums in respect of a contract insuring all the 
Directors of The Hunger Project Australia Limited against liabilities for costs and expenses incurred by them in 
defending any legal proceedings arising out of their conduct while acting in the capacity of Director other than
conduct involving a wilful breach of duty.

The total amount of insurance contract premiums paid was $2,667 (2013: $2,654)

ACTIONS

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the company or intervene in any 
proceedings to which the company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the company 
for all or any part of these proceedings.

The company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.

DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS

The number of meetings of directors held during the year and the number of meetings attended by each director 
were as follows:

Number of meetings attended Number of meetings eligible to 
attend

Diane Grady 5 6

Rachel Akehurst 6 6

Bruce Beeren 6 6

Catherine Burke 6 6

Deb Kwasnicki 5 6

Roger Massy-Greene 5 6

Simon Blackburn 
(appointed 4 June 2014)

4 4
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Directors’ Report (continued)
AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

The Auditors’ Independence Declaration for the year ended 31 December 2014 has been received and can be 
found on page 6 of the annual financial report.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors and is signed for and on behalf 
of the directors by:

Bruce Beeren
Director

Sydney
Date: 6 May 2015
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTES 2014
$

2013
$

Continuing Operations
Fundraising – Donations 4,304,098 3,990,142
Other income 70,919 57,710
Revenue 6 4,375,017 4,047,852

Employee benefits expense 7 (634,906) (517,033)
Costs of global projects (3,933,367) (3,964,583)
Travelling expenses (76,867) (123,935)
Telecommunications (8,765) (8,563)
Rent Expense (34,504) (34,583)
Office supplies (540) (515)
Depreciation and amortisation 8 (13,167) (12,640)
Legal and consulting (7,463) (8,589)
Marketing costs (8,188) (21,715)
Finance costs (8,131) (10,188)
Other expenses (163,859) (43,371)
Expenditure (4,889,757) (4,745,715)
Deficit for the year (514,740) (697,863)

Income tax expense - -
Net deficit for the year (514,740) (697,863)
Other items of comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (514,740) (697,863)

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Financial Position
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 2014
$

2013
$

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,141,869 1,939,154
Trade and other receivables 11 235,973 247,827
Prepayments 12 12,202 9,174
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,390,044 2,196,155

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 13 20,679 18,765
Intangible assets 14 17,506 18,204
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 38,185 36,969

TOTAL ASSETS 1,428,229 2,233,124

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and Other Payables 15 123,996 111,914
Provisions 16 904,833 1,207,070
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,028,829 1,318,984

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,028,829 1,318,984

NET ASSETS 399,400 914,140

ACCUMULATED FUNDS
General funds – retained earnings 17 399,400 914,140

TOTAL ACCUMULATED FUNDS 399,400 914,140

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

NOTE 2014
$

2013
$

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from donors 4,163,889 3,905,768
Interest received 27,335 57,730
Payment to suppliers and employees (850,606) (698,453)
Finance costs paid (8,131) (10,188)
Funding of global projects (4,158,972) (3,673,414)
Net cash flows used in operating activities 10 (826,485) (418,557)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (9,383) (18,369)
Purchase of  intangibles - Website Development (5,001) -

Net cash flows used in investing activities (14,384) (18,369)

Effects of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and 
cash equivalents 43,584 -

Net decrease in cash held (797,285) (436,926)

Cash at beginning of financial year 1,939,154 2,376,080
Cash at end of year 9 1,141,869 1,939,154

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

General Funds
$

Total
$

Accumulated funds at 1 January 2013 1,612,003 1,612,003

Comprehensive loss for the year (697,863) (697,863)

Accumulated funds at 31 December 2013 914,140 914,140

Comprehensive loss for the year (514,740) (502,739)

Accumulated funds at 31 December 2014 399,400 411,401
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Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financial report of The Hunger Project Australia Limited (the Company) for the year ended 31 
December 2014 was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 6 May 
2015.

The Hunger Project Australia is a company limited by guarantee incorporated in Australia. The 
Company is a charitable organisation that contributes to funding and overseeing programs run by other 
Hunger Project organisations in overseas countries.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial report is a general purpose financial report and it has been prepared in accordance with 
the requirements of the Australian Charities and Not For Profit Commission Act (ACNC) Act, 
Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting Standards. The financial report has been prepared 
on a historical cost basis.

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars.

(b) Statement of compliance

The general purpose financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Charities and Not For Profit Commission Act 
(ACNC), Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board. A statement of compliance with the International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) cannot be made 
due to the Company applying not-for-profit specific requirements contained in the Australian 
Accounting Standards.

(c) New accounting standards and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

Accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
Certain Australian Accounting Standards have recently been issued or amended but are not yet 
effective and have not been adopted by the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014. The 
Directors have not early adopted any of these new or amended standards or interpretations. The 
directors have not yet fully assessed the impact of these new or amended standards (to the extent 
relevant to the company) and interpretations. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable to the 
extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be 
reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is
recognised.

(i) Other income - interest income
Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of 
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant 
period using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

(ii) Fundraising – donations
Income from donations and appeals is recorded when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 
to the entity and the revenue can be reliably measured. 

(e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts 
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash 
equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

(f) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method, less an allowance for impairment.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis at an operating unit level. Individual 
debts that are known to be uncollectible are written off when identified.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses.  

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets as follows:

Computers and software 33.33%
Office furniture and equipment 20 %

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if 
appropriate, at each financial year end.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Intangible Assets

The intangible asset of the company comprises the Company’s website and is stated at cost.

The website has been amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life, which is 
currently determined to be 5 years.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if 
appropriate, at each financial year end.

(i) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on 
the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. Leases where 
the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as 
operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying 
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term. 

(j) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost due to their short term nature they are not 
discounted. They represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end 
of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Company becomes obliged to make future 
payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services. The amounts are unsecured and are 
usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

(k) Provisions and employee benefits

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Employee leave benefits

(i) Wages, salaries, annual leave and personal leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating 
personal leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in respect of 
employees' services up to the reporting date. They are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 
when the liabilities are settled. 

(ii) Long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised and measured as the present value of expected future 
payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the 
projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, 
experience of employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted 
using market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and 
currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(l) Income tax and other taxes

The Company is a registered charitable organisation and is exempt from income tax in accordance with 
section 23(e) of the Income Tax Assessment Act. It is also exempt from sales and capital gains taxes 
and state payroll tax. It is a GST registered entity.

Other taxes
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

• When the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is recoverable from the taxation 
authority, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or 
as part of the expense item as applicable; and

• Receivables and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

(m) Project accruals

Project accruals represent an accrual for funds which the Company has received from investors which 
are owed to Epicentres, Country based programs or Sectoral programs. These programs are projects in 
developing countries for which the Company specifically seeks funding from investors.

(n) Services in kind

The measurable fair value of services in kind is disclosed as a separate note to the financial statements.
The fair value of these services has been recognised in the results of the company’s operations as 
donations and expenses in the financial year.

(o) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial report are based on historical results and 
the best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and 
are based on current trends and economic data from internal and external sources. The bases for all 
critical judgements and estimates have been disclosed in the foregoing statement of significant 
accounting policies.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company’s principal financial instruments comprise receivables, payables, cash and short-term 
deposits.  

The Company manages its exposure to key financial risks, including interest rate and currency risk in 
accordance with the Company’s financial risk management policy. The objective of the policy is to 
support the delivery of the Company’s financial targets whilst protecting future financial security.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Risk exposures and responses

Interest Rate Risk
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the 
company’s cash at bank and short term deposits. 

At balance date, the Company had the following mix of financial assets and liabilities exposed to 
Australian variable interest rate risk that are not designated in cash flow hedges:

2014
$

2013
$

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,141,869 1,939,154

1,141,869 1,939,154
Financial liabilities - -

Net exposure 1,141,869 1,939,154

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rate risk exposures in existence at the balance 
sheet date:

At 31 December 2014, if interest rates had moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all other 
variables held constant, post tax profit and equity would have been affected as follows:

Judgements of reasonably 
possible movements:

Post tax profit
higher/(lower)

Other comprehensive income
higher/(lower)

2014
$

2013
$

2014
$

2013
$

+1% (100 basis points) 15,405 21,576 - -
(0.5)% (50 basis points) (7,703) (10,788) - -

The movements in profit are due to higher interest costs from variable rate cash balances. 

Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Hunger Project Australia’s exposure to the 
risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relate primarily to the operating activities (when revenue or 
expense is denominated in a different currency from the Company’s presentation currency).

Cash balances are monitored on an on-going basis with the result that the Company’s exposure to 
foreign currency rate changes is not significant.  

Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the financial assets of the Company, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, 
and trade and other receivables. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from potential default of
the counter-party, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.  

The Company only trades with recognised, creditworthy third parties and as such collateral are not 
requested nor it is the Company’s policy to securitise its trade and other receivables.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Receivable balances are monitored on an on-going basis with the result that the Company’s exposure to 
bad debts is not significant.  

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises from the financial liabilities of the Company and the Company’s subsequent 
ability to meet its obligations to repay its financial liabilities as and when they fall due. All of the 
Company’s financial assets and liabilities are expected to be settled within six months.

Maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities based on management’s expectations

The risk implied from the values shown in the table below, reflects a balanced view of cash inflows and 
outflows. 

Year ended 31 December 2014
<6 months

$

6-12
months

$
1-5 years

$
5 years

$
Total

$

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,141,869 - - - 1,141,869
Trade and other receivables 235,973 - - - 235,973

1,377,842 - - - 1,377,842
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables 123,996 - - - 123,996

- - -
Net Maturity 1,253,846 - - - 1,253,846

Fair Value
The methods of estimating fair value are outlined in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually 
evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue 
and expenses. Management bases its judgements and estimates on historical experience and on other
various factors it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis 
of the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

Management has identified critical accounting policies for which significant judgements, estimates and 
assumptions are made. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and 
conditions and may materially affect financial results or the financial position reported in future 
periods.

Further details of the nature of these assumptions and conditions may be found in the relevant notes to 
the financial statements.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates predominately in one industry. The principal activity of the Company was that 
of a charity. The Company operates in Australia, and supports The Hunger Project programs in Africa, 
India and Bangladesh.

6. REVENUE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

2014
$

2013
$

Fundraising - Donations 4,152,035 3,990,142
                       Donations -Services in kind contribution 152,063

Other income
Interest revenue 27,335 57,710
Miscellaneous income 43,584

4,375,017 4,047,852

Refer to Note 22 for details of services in kind
Miscellaneous income related to realised foreign exchange gains

7. EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries and wages 528,917 436,445
Superannuation 56,902 42,580
Employee leave expense 46,821 36,882
Staff training
Recruitment

344
750

90

Workers compensation costs 1,172 1,036

634,906 517,033

8. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Property, Plant and Equipment
                   Depreciation for the year 7,469 6,941
Intangible Asset
                 Amortisation for the year 5,698 5,699

13,167 12,640
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2014
$

2013
$

Cash at bank and in hand 1,141,869 1,939,154

Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash 
equivalents comprise the following at 31 December:

Cash at bank and in hand 1,141,869 1,939,154 
1,141,869 1,939,154 

10. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS RECONCILIATION

Reconciliation of net deficit after tax to net cash flows from 
operations

Net deficit (514,740) (697,863)

Adjustments for:
Depreciation 7,469 6,941
Amortisation 5,698 5,699

               
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 11,854 (71,999)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments (3,028) (1,367)
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 12,082 43,704
Increase / (decrease) in provisions (345,820) 296,328

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (826,485) (418,557)

Refer to note 22 for details of non-cash settled Services in kind.

11. CURRENT ASSETS – TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other receivables 235,973 247,827

235,973 247,827

12. CURRENT ASSETS – PREPAYMENTS

Prepayments 12,202 9,174
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13. NON-CURRENT ASSETS – PROPERTY, PLANT and EQUIPMENT

Reconciliation of carrying amounts at the beginning and end of the period

Office Furniture 
& Equipment

$
Computers

$
Total

$
Year ended
31 December 2014
At 1 January 2014 net of accumulated 
depreciation and impairment

643 18,122 18,765

Additions - 9,383 9,383
Depreciation charge for the year (364) (7,105) (7,469)
At 31 December 2014 net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment

279 20,400 20,679

At 31 December 2014
Cost 1,820 48,860 50,680
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (1,541) (28,460) (30,001)
Net carrying amount 279 20,400 20,679

Year ended
31 December 2013
At 1 January 2013 net of accumulated 
depreciation and impairment

1,007 6,330 7,337

Additions - 18,369 18,369
Depreciation charge for the year (364) (6,577) (6,941)
At 31 December 2013 net of accumulated 
depreciation and impairment

643 18,122 18,765

At 31 December 2013
Cost 3,007 49,011 52,018
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (2,364) (30,889) (33,253)
Net carrying amount 643 18,122 18,765
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Reconciliation of carrying amounts at the beginning and end of the period
Website 

Development 
Costs $

Total
$

Year ended
31 December 2014
At 1 January 2014 net of accumulated amortisation and impairment 18,204 18,204
Additions 5,000 5,000
Amortisation charge for the year (5,698) (5,698)
At 31 December 2014 net of accumulated amortisation and impairment 17,506 17,506

At 31 December 2014
Cost 33,493 33,493
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (15,987) (15,987)
Net carrying amount 17,506 17,506

Year ended
31 December 2013
At 1 January 2013 net of accumulated amortisation and impairment 23,903 23,903
Additions - -
Amortisation charge for the year (5,699) (5,699)
At 31 December 2013 net of accumulated amortisation and impairment 18,204 18,204

At 31 December 2013
Cost 28,493 28,493
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (10,289) (10,289)
Net carrying amount 18,204 18,204

15. CURRENT LIABILITIES – TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2014
$

2013
$

Trade payables 38,147 21,809
Other 40,849 54,105
Staff bonuses 45,000 36,000
Carrying amount of trade and other payables 123,996 111,914

16. CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS

Long service leave 24,502 22,334
Annual leave 25,327 20,003
Fringe benefits tax provision - 84,123
Project accruals 855,004 1,080,610

904,833 1,207,070
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17. RETAINED EARNINGS AND RESERVES 2014
$

2013
$

Movements in retained earnings were as follows:

Balance 1 January 914,140 1,612,003
Net deficit for the year (514,740) (697,863)
Balance 31 December 399,400 914,140

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Key Management Personnel Remuneration

Short Term 273,622 245,676
Total 273,622 245,676

(b) Board of Directors

Directors’ Remuneration
All Directors, excluding the Chief Executive Officer, provide their services on a voluntary basis.

Reimbursement of Expenses to Directors
Reimbursement of travel expenses 3,729 4,227
Total 3,729 4,227

Monetary Donations made by Directors and their related entities 
to The Hunger Project 
Donations received 303,957 428,972
Total 303,957 428,972

19. COMMITMENTS

Leasing commitments
Operating lease commitments – Company as lessee
The Company has entered into a commercial periodic lease on rental property. The lease has no fixed term and 
at least 60 days notice of termination is required from the lessor or lessee. There are no restrictions placed on 
the lessee by entering into this lease.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows:

Within one year 5,743 5,743
After more than one year - -
Total minimum lease payments 5,743 5,743

20. MEMBERS’ GUARANTEE

The company is limited by guarantee.  If the company is wound up, the Constitution states that each 
member is required to contribute a maximum of $100 each towards meeting any outstanding 
obligations of the company. At 31 December 2014, the number of members was 147 (2013: 160).
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21. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected 
or may significantly affect the operations of the company, the results of those operations, or the state of 
affairs of the company in subsequent financial years.

22. SERVICES IN KIND

During 2014 services worth a total $152,063 (2013: $77,273) were received as contributions in kind,
and consist of the following: 

2014 2013
$ $

- Audit services provided by Ernst & Young 30,900 27,273

- Staff training and development 
· Assay Investor Perspectives - 10,000
.     HR Junction 2,000
· RSA Consulting 37,000 20,000
- Programme Facilitation
.   Other   63,000 20,000

- Recruitment 
.   The Insight Group 19,163 - 

152,063 77,273

23. BUSINESS DETAILS

The registered office and its principal place of business is:

THE HUNGER PROJECT AUSTRALIA
Level 1, 1 Castlereagh Street
Sydney  NSW  2000

At 31 December 2014, the business had 9 employees (31 December 2013: 7).

The principal activity of the company during the course of the year was as a Charitable Organisation.

24. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION - COMPLYING WITH ACFID CODE OF CONDUCT

The Hunger Project Australia Limited is a signatory to the Australian Council for International 
Development (ACFID) Code of Conduct, and as such has an obligation to provide the following 
supplementary information which demonstrates our adherence to the Code’s financial standards.

The Summary Financial Reports have been prepared in accordance with the requirements set out in the 
ACFID Code of Conduct. For further information on the Code please refer to the ACFID Code of 
Conduct Guidance Document available at www.acfid.asn.au. 

The Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Table of Cash Movements for Designated Purposes and 
Statement of Changes in Equity provided below, represent a true reflection of the financial accounts for 
this year.
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24. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The information contained in this supplement should be read in conjunction with the financial 
statements and accompanying notes on pages 6 to 22. 

Income Statement
2014

$
2013

$
REVENUE
Donations and gifts

• Monetary
• Non-monetary*

3,235,067
152,063

2,872,504
-

Bequests and Legacies - -
Grants

• AusAID
• Other Australian^
• Other overseas

- 
916,968

- 
1,117,638

-
Investment Income 27,335 57,710
Other Income 43,584 -
Revenue for International Political or Religious Proselytisation 
Programs - -
TOTAL REVENUE 4,375,017 4,047,852

EXPENDITURE
International Aid and Development Programs Expenditure

• Funds to international programs (3,933,367) (3,964,583)
• Program support costs (77,302) (92,528)

Community education (184,314) (201,284)
Fundraising costs

• Public
• Government, multilateral and private

(192,701) 
(115,349) 

(172,847)
(109,232)

Accountability and Administration (234,661) (205,241)
Non-Monetary Expenditure* (152,063) -
Total International Aid and Development Programs 
Expenditure (4,889,757) (4,745,715)
Expenditure for International Political or Religious Proselytisation 
Programs - -
Domestic Programs Expenditure (Incl. Monetary & Non Monetary) - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURE (4,889,757) (4,745,715)
Excess of expense over revenue from continuing operations (514,740) (697,863)

* Services in kind totalled $152,063 (2013: $77,273) and are disclosed in note 22 of the accompanying notes to
the financial statements.
^ Includes grants sourced from all other Australian Institutions and other Australian organisations such as 
philanthropic organisations and corporate entities
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24. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Balance Sheet
2014

$
2013

$
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,141,869 1,939,154
Trade and other receivables 235,973 247,827
Inventories - -
Prepayments 12,202 9,174
Assets held for sale - -
Other financial assets - -
Total Current Assets 1,390,044 2,196,155

Non-Current Assets
Trade and other receivables - -
Other financial assets - -
Property, plant and equipment 20,679 18,765
Investment property - -
Intangibles 17,506 18,204
Other non-current assets - -
Total Non-Current Assets 38,185 36,969
TOTAL ASSETS 1,428,229 2,233,124

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 123,996 111,914
Borrowings - -
Current tax liabilities - -
Other financial liabilities - -
Provisions 904,833 1,207,070
Other - -
Total Current Liabilities 1,028,829 1,318,984

Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings - -
Other Financial Liabilities - -
Provisions - -
Other - -
Total Non-Current Liabilities - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,028,829 1,318,985

NET ASSETS 399,400 914,140

EQUITY
Reserves - -
Retained earnings 399,400 914,140
TOTAL EQUITY 399,400 914,140
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24. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Table of Cash Movements for Designated Purposes
Cash available 
at beginning of 
financial year

Cash raised 
during financial 

year

Cash disbursed 
during financial 

year

Cash available 
at end of 

financial year

Total for other designated 
purposes*

248,323 1,580,167   (1,078,826) 749,664

Unleashed Womens’ Leaders 
Initiative

39,704 382,071 (254,651) 167,124

Burkina Faso Enterprise 165,867 100,000  (265,867) 0

Total for non-designated purposes 1,485,260 2,128,986  (3,389,169) 225,077

TOTAL 1,939,154 4,191,224 (4,988,513) 1,141,865

*Other designated purposes refer to fund raising for designated purposes that each generated less than 10% of
total income for the period under review.

Statement of Changes in Equity
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 

Consolidated Retained 
Earnings

$

Reserves
$ 

Other
$ 

Total
$ 

Balance at 31 December 2013 914,140 - - 914,140

Excess of revenue over 
expenses (514,740) - - (514,740)

Amount transferred to/(from) 
reserves

- - - - 

Balance at 31 December 2014 399,400 - - 399,400
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25. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The auditor of The Hunger Project Australia Limited is Ernst & Young. Audit services are provided by 
Ernst & Young on a pro-bono basis. Remuneration for other non-audit services was $3,000 (2013:
$3,000).
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Directors’ Declaration

In accordance with a resolution of the directors of The Hunger Project Australia Limited, I state that:

1. In the opinion of the directors:

(a) The financial statements and notes of the company for the financial year ended 
31 December 2014 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

(i) Giving a true and fair view of the company's financial position as at 31 
December 2014 and its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) Complying with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001; 

(b) The financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial 
Reporting Standards to the extent disclosed in Note 2 (b); and

(c) There are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts 
as and when they become due and payable.

2. This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the
directors by the chief executive officer and chief financial officer in accordance with section
295A of the Corporations Act 2011 for the financial year ended 31 December 2014.

On behalf of the Board

Bruce Beeren
Director

Sydney
6 May 2015
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Independent auditor's report to the members of The Hunger Project 
Australia Limited 

Report on the financial report
We have audited the accompanying financial report of The Hunger Project Australia Limited, which 
comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014, the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information including the Australian Council of International Development (“ACFID”) income 
statement, ACFID Balance Sheet, ACFID table of cash movements for designated purposes and the 
directors' declaration. 

Directors' responsibility for the financial report 

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a 
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the Corporations Act 2001 
and Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012 and for such internal controls as 
the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

Auditor's responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply 
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant 
to the entity's preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Independence 

In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations 
Act 2001 and the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012.  We have given to 
the directors of the company a written Auditor’s Independence Declaration, a copy of which is 
included in the financial report. We confirm that the Auditor’s Independence Declaration would be in 
the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor’s report. 

Ernst & Young
680 George Street
Sydney  NSW  2000 Australia
GPO Box 2646 Sydney  NSW  2001

Tel: +61 2 9248 5555
Fax: +61 2 9248 5959
ey.com/au

Ernst & Young
680 George Street
Sydney  NSW  2000 Australia
GPO Box 2646 Sydney  NSW  2001

Tel: +61 2 9248 5555
Fax: +61 2 9248 5959
ey.com/au
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial report of The Hunger Project Australia Limited is in accordance with the 
Corporations Act 2001 and the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012, 
including: 

i giving a true and fair view of the company's financial position as at 31 December 2014 and 
of its performance for the year ended on that date; and 

ii complying with Australian Accounting Standards the Corporations Regulations 2001 and 
the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Regulation 2013 and the Corporations 
Regulations 2001. 

Report on the requirements of the WA Charitable Collections Act (1946) 
and the WA Charitable Collections Regulations (1947)
We have audited the financial report as required by the WA Charitable Collections Act (1946). Our 
procedures included obtaining an understanding of the internal control structure for fundraising 
appeal activities and examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting compliance with the 
accounting and associated record keeping requirements for fundraising appeal activities pursuant to 
the WA Charitable Collections Act (1946) and the WA Charitable Collections Regulations (1947). 

Because of the inherent limitations of any assurance engagement, it is possible that fraud, error or 
non-compliance may occur and not be detected. An audit is not designed to detect all instances of 
non-compliance with the requirements described in the above-mentioned Acts and Regulations as 
an audit is not performed continuously throughout the period and the audit procedures performed 
in respect of compliance with these requirements are undertaken on a test basis. The audit opinion 
expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis. 

Opinion 

In our opinion: 

a) the financial report of The Hunger Project Australia Limited has been properly drawn up
and associated records have been properly kept during the financial year ended 31
December 2014, in all material respects, in accordance with:

i the WA Charitable Collections Act (1946); and  

ii the WA Charitable Collections Regulations (1947). 

b) the money received as a result of fundraising appeals conducted by the company during the
financial year ended 31 December 2014 has been properly accounted for and applied, in all
material respects, in accordance with the above mentioned Acts and Regulations.

Ernst & Young 

Meredith Scott 
Partner 
Sydney  
6 May 2015 
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The Hunger Project Relief Fund is 
endorsed as a Deductible Gift Recipient 
with the Australian Tax Office.  Monetary 
gifts of $2 or more are tax deductible. 

The Hunger Project Australia is a 
proud member of Australia Council for 
International Development (ACFID). 
ACFID is the peak Council for Australian 
not-for-profit aid and development 
organisations working to attain a world 
where gross inequality and extreme 
poverty are eradicated.

The Hunger Project has been awarded the 
highest possible 4-star rating by Charity 
Navigator, the leading independent 
charity evaluator, which compares and 
rates leading charities based on their 
performance and accountability.

The Hunger Project Australia has a 
complaints handling process in place. 
Please direct any complaints to our Chief 
Operating Officer on (02) 9222 9088 or 
complaints@thp.org

We are also signatory to the ACFID Code 
of Conduct which is a voluntary self-
regulatory sector code of good practice. 
Information about how to make a 
complaint to ACFID can be found at www.
acfid.asn.au.

Copyright ©2015. All material contained 
in this Report is subject to copyright 
owned by or licensed to The Hunger 
Project Australia. All rights reserved.
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